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	Date of Issuance:
	10/31/2012
	Solicitation No.
	4350000009

	Requisition No.
	4350000028     
	Amendment No.
	002


	Hours and date specified for receipt of offers is changed:
	X No
	 Yes  to
	
	CST/CDT


Pursuant to OAC 580:15-4-5©, this document shall serve as official notice of amendment to the Solicitation identified above. Such notice is being provided to all suppliers to which the original solicitation was sent. Suppliers submitting bids or quotations shall acknowledge receipt of this solicitation amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the solicitation as follows:

(1) Sign and return a copy of this amendment with the solicitation response being submitted; or,

(2) If the supplier has already submitted a response, this acknowledgement must be signed and returned prior to the solicitation deadline. All amendment acknowledgements submitted separately shall have the solicitation number and bid opening date printed clearly on the front of the envelope.

ISSUED BY AND RETURN TO:

	
	Hurtisine Franklin

	Office of Management and Enterprise Services/
	Contracting Officer

	ISD Procurement
 Attn: Hurtisine Franklin
	
	
	(405) 521-6419

	3115 N. Lincoln Blvd.
	Phone Number 

	Oklahoma City, OK 73105
	Hurtisine.Franklin@omes.ok.gov

	
	E-Mail Address


Description of Amendment:
a. This is to incorporate the following:

	I. Page Comment Submitted by Lynn Becker -
Question 1.
Please specify the minimum number of terminals the Lottery requires to be included in the base price offer?

Answer 1.

a) Reference Section - C.2.1.7 of the RFP... there are approximately 2,200 full service online retail terminals in 1,950 separate retail locations”. The RFP indicates that the proposal must support this throughout the contract and that the proposal must describe the growth capacity that is included in the proposal baseline. 

b) Current count is: 100 PCTS; 1963 terminals (excluding 13 “super retailer” terminals), 27 of the 1963 are 2nd terminals at a location; approximately 1,936 retailer locations. 

Question 2. 

             Please provide sales by price point and ticket size for all instant games for the last three years? 
Answer 2.

1. OLC tickets are 4” wide. 
2.  $1 tickets are typically 2.5” tall 
3. $2 tickets, 4” tall; (rarely but possibly 6” tall)
4.  $3 and $5 tickets, 6” tall   
5. $3 and $5 tickets, 6” tall.

           For sales by price point, see attached excel file named: 3 Year Sales Info.
Question 3.
Please provide a listing of the Key Account Retailers, including sales by Key Account in Excel?

  Answer 3.
a) See attached excel file named: Key Account Sales_FY11 and FY12_10-18-12. 

b) These sales numbers include free tickets, which are removed from sales and prize expense to calculate total     lottery sales and prize expense in financials. 
Question 4.

          Would the Lottery please provide the most recent Lottery organization chart? 
Answer 4.

          See http://www.ok.gov/cio/Procurement/Solicitations/Text_Versions_-_Solicitation_4350000009.html
Question 5.

      Please provide a copy of SGI’s organization chart applicable to their local in Oklahoma Lottery operations? 
Answer 5.

      See http://www.ok.gov/cio/Procurement/Solicitations/Text_Versions_-_Solicitation_4350000009.html
Question 6.

     How are instant tickets delivered to the Retailers? 

Answer 6. 

     Instant tickets are delivered to the Retailers by using UPS. Tickets are delivered according to OLC release dates and procedures and within 48 hours for orders taken over the phone by the gaming vendor.
Question 7.
   Does the Lottery operate with "trunk stock" for servicing the Retailers’ instant ticket needs? 

Answer 7.

    No

Questions 8.
      Please provide a print quality Lottery logo and print quality game logos, preferably in EPS or vector-based format so that we may use them in our bid response? 

Answer 8.

a)  Follow the link below,   b) go to the bottom of the page for downloadable logos for your use.  http://www.lottery.ok.gov/marketing_ideas.asp 
Question 9.

          What special events or non-traditional retailer events such as state fairs are supported by the Lottery?
Answer 9. 
a) The bulk of the special event program is focused around the OKC Thunder (44 home games + playoffs) and the State Fair (10 days).  
b) We also participate in some local rodeo events as well as some events in Tulsa, e.g.  Oktoberfest.
Question 10. 

      Currently how many instant tickets are housed in-state in Oklahoma for distribution? 

Answer 10. 

      102,876
Question 11.

     Currently how many skids of instant tickets are housed in state for distribution? 

Answer 11.

65 skids

Question 12. 

    On average per month by retailer (last 12 months average) what is the amount of ticket returns processed from the OLC retailers? 

Answer 12.

a) $254,098 average monthly returns;

b)  monthly average of  $139.77

Question 13.
     Over the past year, please provide a report that describes and lists the daily shipping amount of extra items i.e. POS, manuals, newsletter, online games supplies, to OLC retailers? 
Answer 13.

    Not available

Question 14.
        Please provide a report that describes and list the daily shipping amount of instant tickets to OLC retailers? 
Answer 14.

Monday

Tuesday

Wednesday

Thursday

Friday

Avg. 

Total
Daily Orders

267

257

248

232

202

241

1206

Includes Initial Allocation

333

319

309

295

286

308

1,542

Question 15.  
              Please provide a report that lists the instant ticket games released by month for the past two years? 

Answer 15.

         See the attached Excel file named: Scratcher launches by month_12-18-12.
Question 16.
     Please provide the average number of packages of instant tickets shipped and average weight of packages sent to retailers for the last 12 months?

Answer 16.

            Avg. # of pkgs. 1,542; weight 3.31
Question 17.

Is the vendor required to maintain its operation in the same facility as the lottery?  If so, how much space remains available in the current facility for the winning bidder?  Please provide name and contact information for the building landlord? 

Answer 17.

a) Under the current contract, yes. 
b) Building Landlord contact information:

        38th / Santa Fe, LLC

211 N. Robinson, Suite N1950

Oklahoma City, OK  73102

Attn: Erik Gumerson, Property Management

405.524.8484 ext. 107

erik@ggdevco.com
c) This is not a prescribed requirement in current the RFP; clearly, co-locating would be a convenience in several ways.
Question 18.
In order to design network communications for the bid, will the Lottery please provide an active retailer list with address and telephone number in excel. 

Answer 18.

See attached excel file named: OLC LAT_LONG 2 October 19 12

Question 19.

Please specify which communications methods are in use currently by retailer, how many VSAT, how many DSL, how many Cellular, or any other methods in use? 

Answer 19
Cellular, 13 DSL, 1904 VSAT

Question 20.

Why are state run liquor stores not selling Lottery products? 

Answer 20.

The State does not operate liquor stores in Oklahoma; they are private businesses. The Oklahoma Constitution allows liquor stores to sell only liquor.  Lottery products may not be sold in a liquor store.  Some liquor stores have a separate convenience type store connected to it and lottery products may be sold there. To change that law requires a constitutional amendment
Question 21

Please provide the manufacturer and model of the current jackpot signs which the vendors are required to maintain? 

Answer 21

Our manufacturer is Carmanah Signs.  Our original order with them (500 signs) was placed back in mid-2006.  As these signs are beginning to show age we are going to be placing them into a “retirement status” vs. taking on the cost of repair.  Our new sign, which can be found at:  http://carmanahsigns.com/lottery/jackpot-signs/ is a modular unit.

Question 22.

What is the current telemarketing call schedule, how many telemarketing reps are making calls, who is called, how often are they called, and does the lottery use an auto order process? 
Answer 22.

Currently the gaming vendor employs 3 telemarketers. Retailers are called weekly or bi-weekly. An auto order process is not being utilized.

Question 23.

Please provide current staffing levels for field sales representatives? 

Answer 23. 
Current staffing is for 18 Marketing Service Reps (MSR’s)
Question 24.

How many instant ticket dispensers of what types are in the field now? 

Answer 24.

a) Schafer Systems Inc. is the current vendor for dispensers. Average size is 16

b) Types being utilized, approximate counts and manufacturer URLs are:

Modular: 1468 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratch.htm
Over the terminal: 54 (varying game configurations) http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchOTSD.htm
In-counter: 161 

In-counter 12: http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchICD12.htm
In-counter 16: http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchICFL16.htm
Promoter: 240 

Promoter 12: http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM12.htm
Promoter 16 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM16.htm
Promoter 20 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM20.htm
Edge Glow: 13 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchAfterGlow.htm
Question 25.
How many instant vending machines are currently installed?

Answer 25. 
Currently 100 Player Central Terminals are installed, offering both instant and online games.

Question 26.

What is the current average daily vending sales per machine separated by online and instant? 

Answer 26.

Sales are calculated on a weekly basis and are for online only.  Instant sales are assigned to and accounted for at the retailer’s main sales terminal, not on the PCT. For sales, see attached excel file named: PCT Weekly Comparison FY 2012-13.

Question 27.

Will the Lottery please extend the proposal submission date from Nov 15 to Nov 31?  The Oklahoma Lottery RFP was significantly less specific in its requirements than is typical in the industry. 

Answer 27.
Please see Amendment 001 issued 10/23/2012 for RFP 4350000009-The closing date has been extended to 11/29/2012 – closing time remains unchanged (3:00 PM CST).

Question 28.

Please provide the location and number of the Lottery’s claim centers?

Answer 28.

This is available at the following URL: https://www.lottery.ok.gov/authorized_claim_centers.asp
Question 29.

Because the vendor must provide play stations maintenance and upkeep, please provide the number of and manufacturer and model numbers of the existing play stations. 
Answer 29.

Currently, there are 1095 Shafer Systems, Inc. manufactured play stations installed in the field and 319 in the warehouse. Item # is: 400000709; URL: http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/playCenters/mgsTall.htm 
The color is green as is displayed on the lower right of the web page in the picture with the Oklahoma Lottery logo.
Question 30.

Please provide an excel file list of installed ITVMs showing location, retailer, trade style, sales by year, and number of bins at each location? 

Answer 30.
   The Lottery currently uses Play Central Terminals which sell both Instant and Online products.  

a) For sales, see attached excel file named: “OLC PCT Report 10 22 12”. 

b) For locations, see attached file named: “PCT Weekly Comparison FY 2012-13”.  
Each PCT has 16 bins. Number of bins used varies by location.

Question 31.

     What is the average number of ITVM relocations, removals, etc. on a monthly basis? 

Answer 31.
    One  (1)


	Question 32.
How many retailers will require more than one terminal?

Answer 32.

Currently 23 retail locations have a second terminal because of sales volume; 13 locations have a “super retailer” terminal. Lottery headquarters has three terminals and several used for events.
Question 33.

Please provide copies of any contracts the Lottery has with Scientific Games including any amendments for both the Instant and Online services provided? 
Answer 33. 
Please see attached PDF file named Original PO Contract July 2005 (text version available at http://www.ok.gov/cio/Procurement/Solicitations/Text_Versions_-_Solicitation_4350000009.html)
Question 34.
In order to provide a fair and level evaluation for all proposals and to best to provide best value to the lottery, state of Oklahoma and the education beneficiary we assume new and unused equipment is a requirement, please confirm? 
Answer 34.
Offerors may submit alternative pricing/cost for used equipment. 

a) Any proposed alternative Products/Services shall include price/cost

b) Proposed alternatives must include cost of primary Products/Services to clearly demonstrate any resulting reduction in price/cost and benefit to OLC.   

Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Alternative Products/Services
Example: 

Cost of Primary Product/Service _______ per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Cost of proposed Alternative Product/Service __________per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Optional Services for Alternative Products/Services


	Question 35.

What about Keno, why isn’t the Lottery allowed to run Keno and sell Lottery in bars?  When will this be changed? 
Answer 35.

a)  Allowing Keno to run in the State of Oklahoma is an issue that remains unresolved.

b) OLC is not in the position to say when or if there will be a change.

c) The Lottery can be sold in bars. None categorized as a bar are currently selling.

II. Submitted by Lynn Becker- as (Changes (2) Duplicate Questions of question listed above
1. How many instant vending machines are currently installed? 

A: see answer to 25 above.

2. What is the current average daily vending sales per machine separated by online and instant? 

A: see answer to 26 above.

3. Will the Lottery please extend the proposal submission date from Nov 15 to Nov 30?  The Oklahoma Lottery RFP was significantly less specific in its requirements than is typical in the industry. 

A: see answer to 27 above.

4. Please provide the location and number of the Lottery’s claim centers? 

A: see answer to 28 above.

5. Because the vendor must provide play stations maintenance and upkeep, please provide the number of and manufacturer and model numbers of the existing play stations. 


A: see answer to 29 above.

6. How many retailers will require more than one terminal? 

A: see answer to 32 above.

7. Please provide copies of any contracts the Lottery has with Scientific Games including any amendments for both the Instant and Online services provided? 

A: see answer to 33 above.

8. In order to provide a fair and level evaluation for all proposals and to best to provide best value to the lottery, state of Oklahoma and the education beneficiary we assume new and unused equipment is a requirement, please confirm? 

A: see answer to 34 above.

9. What about Keno, why isn’t the Lottery allowed to run Keno and sell Lottery in bars? When will this be changed? 

A: see answer to 35 above.

III. Page comment Submitted by Lynn Becker 
Question 1.
1. We would like to request the RFP document in MS Word format, this makes it a lot easier to draft our bid response, please, and thank you.

2. Answer 1.
3. Please see the following MS Word Documents:
a) Solicitation4350000009.doc
b) OMESForm004.doc
c) OMESForm076.doc
IV. Page Comment Submitted by Kathy Muenks
Question 1.
Would the State please provide a list of retailers in an Excel file, including street addresses and/or geo-coded (latitude/longitude) locations? This information will enable offerors to determine the appropriate communications technology for each retailer and prepare the best offer for the State.

Answer 1.

See attached excel file named OLC LAT-LONG 2 October 19 12

V. Comment edited by Lianne Paturel : Changes (2)
Question 1. Duplicate of question #6
General Question*: Would OLC please provide the prize structures for each price point? If prize structures are unavailable, would the Lottery please provide the payout percentages and odds for each price point?
Answer 1.
Prize structures vary by game. Each has 4 mini-pools. See separate file showing prize structures for games 259 through 291, created in 2012. See attached file PDF  named: EOP-PSs (games 259-291).

Currently, payouts are approximately as follows. These may be modified as deemed appropriate and necessary by OLC to achieve the profit requirement.

       Price Pt.

          Payout range

$1


48.31 – 51.05%

$2


55.31 – 57.73%

$3


60.68 – 61.91%

$5


64.70 – 65.01%

Question 2. Duplicate of question 7 below
General Question*: Would the Lottery please provide information regarding any payout restrictions for instant tickets? Also, would OLC please confirm whether the restriction is per game, per price point category, or for overall instant sales?
Answer 2.

Payouts are restricted by internal policy developed taking into account the statutory 35% profit requirement which limits the overall payouts that can be utilized.  This mainly impacts Scratcher games, but also impacts development of online game possibilities.  The other main factor includes the current mix of sales by price point and impact that has on profitability. 
Questions 3. Duplicate of question 8- below

General Question*: Would the Lottery please provide the current contractual  pricing and  options  pricing?

Answer 3.

Current pricing is as follows:


         % of sales

Base pricing




             2.5925% 


Thermal Branding  





0.0250% 


Ticket checker installation




0.1100%


Upgrade Play Central Stations to include online sales: 
 0.1125% 


Total rate paid





2.8400%



	Question 4. Duplicate of question 9 –below
Would the Lottery please provide background information and results/analysis of any recent market research studies that have been conducted? 

Answer 4.
Some instant ticket research was conducted in 2009-2010. No real market research has been conducted since 2008.
Question 5. Duplicate of question 10-below 

Would the Lottery please provide its current FY Strategic Planning and Initiatives plan or report? 

Answer 5.

See attached PDF file named “OLC Strategic Plan 2012-09-18..

Question 6. Duplicate of question 11-below
Would the Lottery please elaborate on the industry tolerances that are required? 
Answer 6.

Proposal is expected to include discussion about any variances from standards listed for the instant ticket printing specifications in item 3.2.1 that the Proposer deems to be appropriate and how that would relate to what is generally acceptable to the lottery industry

Question 7. Duplicate of question 12- below

2 Instant Game Specifications, Item i), page 27*: Would OLC please describe the current barcode technology it uses? 

Answer 7.
Currently a Universal Product Code (UPC) in the form of: 8 83 394 00GGG C

Where G represents the 3 digit game number and C represents the check-digit.
Also, there is a unique bar-coded representation of the game number, validation number, pack number and ticket number appearing on the back of the ticket. It contains 22 decimal digits.

V1. Submitted by Lianne Paturel- Duplicate Questions (first 7 questions above in Section are duplicates of 6 thru 12 of 1 thru 22 below.
Question 1 of 22
General Question: Would OLC please provide historical instant ticket launch schedules for the past three (3) years that include the following information: tickets delivered, tickets sold, price point, ticket size, book size, and ticket theme?
Answer 1.

All books are $300.  That’s 300 $1 tickets; 150 $2 tickets; 100 $3 tickets and 60 $5 tickets.

1 OLC tickets are 4” wide.  

2 $1 tickets are typically 2.5” tall; 

3 $2 tickets, 4” tall; (rarely but possibly 6” tall)

4 $3 and $5 tickets, 6” tall.

Ticket launch information:

Currently, the launch schedule is developed through March 2013.  Historical ticket releases are all available on our web site, including end-of-game reports for each game at:
 http://www.lottery.ok.gov/scratchers.asp?priceRange=all and/or t http://www.lottery.ok.gov/ended_scratchers.asp 


Question 2.

General Question: Would OLC please provide its current launch schedule that includes the following information: tickets delivered, tickets sold (or projected sold), price point, ticket size, book size, and ticket theme? 

Answer 2.

All books are $300.  That’s 300 $1 tickets; 150 $2 tickets; 100 $3 tickets and 60 $5 tickets.

1 OLC tickets are 4” wide.  

2 $1 tickets are typically 2.5” tall; 

3 $2 tickets, 4” tall; (rarely but possibly 6” tall)

4 $3 and $5 tickets, 6” tall.

ticket launch information:

Currently, the launch schedule is developed through March, 2013.  Historical ticket releases are all available on our web site, including end-of-game reports for each game at: http://www.lottery.ok.gov/scratchers.asp?priceRange=all and at

http://www.lottery.ok.gov/ended_scratchers.asp 

Question 3.

General Question: Would OLC please provide its current sales by game for the past three (3) years

Answer 3.

Sales information that is provided is in attached excel file named: 3 Year Sales Info
Question 4.

General Question: Would the Lottery please provide the number of retailers that are established in its Retailer network? 

Answer 4.

Current count is: 100 PCTS; 1963 terminals (excluding 13 “super retailer” terminals), 27 of which are 2nd terminals at a location; approximately 1,936 retailer locations.

Question 5.

Would OLC please provide sample tickets of each ticket size and price point? 

Answer 5. Ticket information is available on our web site, including end-of-game reports for each game at: http://www.lottery.ok.gov/scratchers.asp?priceRange=all and at
http://www.lottery.ok.gov/ended_scratchers.asp
Question 6.

General Question: Would OLC please provide the prize structures for each price point? If prize structures are unavailable, would the Lottery please provide the payout percentages and odds for each price point? 

Answer 6.

Prize structures vary by game. Each has 4 mini-pools. See separate file showing prize structures for games 259 through 291, created in 2012. The file is named: EOP-PSs (games 259-291).
Currently, payouts are approximately as follows. These may be modified as deemed appropriate and necessary by OLC to achieve the profit requirement.
Price Pt.

Payout range

$1

48.31 – 51.05%

$2

55.31 – 57.73%

$3

60.68 – 61.91%

$5

64.70 – 65.01%

Question 7.

General Question: Would the Lottery please provide information regarding any payout restrictions for instant tickets? Also, would OLC please confirm whether the restriction is per game, per price point category, or for overall instant sales? 

Answer 7. 
Payouts are restricted by internal policy developed taking into account the statutory 35% profit requirement which limits the overall payouts that can be utilized.  This mainly impacts Scratcher games, but also impacts development of online game possibilities.  The other main factor includes the current mix of sales by price point and impact that has on profitability. 
Question 8.

General Question: Would the Lottery please provide the current contractual pricing and options pricing?

Answer 8.
Current pricing is as follows:

% of sales

Base pricing
2.5925%
Thermal Branding
0.0250%
Ticket checker installation
0.1100%
Upgrade Play Central Stations to include online sales:
[image: image1.jpg]0.1125%
Total rate paid
2.8400%
Question 9.
General Question: Would the Lottery please provide background information and results/analysis of any recent market research studies that have been conducted? 
Answer 9.

Some instant ticket research was conducted in 2009-2010. No real market research has been conducted since 2008.
Question 10.

General Question: Would the Lottery please provide its current FY Strategic Planning and Initiatives plan or report? 
Answer 10.
See attached PDF titled “OLC Strategic Plan 2012-09-18”.

Question 11.

Regarding C.3.2. Instant Game Specifications, Item e), page 27: Would the Lottery please elaborate on the industry tolerances that are required? 

Answer 11.

a) Offeror’s proposal is required to standards listed for the instant ticket printing specifications in Section C 3.2.1 that the Offeror deems to be appropriate and how that would relate to what is generally acceptable to the lottery industry.
b) Please Reference Section C.3  §C.3.2.1 –
C.3.2.1. It is OLC’s intent to receive Proposals for the printing of instant game tickets using current “state of the art” production techniques, including the services necessary to design and produce secure, instant tickets throughout the term of the contract. A Vendor’s Proposal shall include recommended specifications as to the following:

Question 12.

Regarding C.3.2 Instant Game Specifications, Item i), page 27: Would OLC please describe the current barcode technology it uses? 

Answer 12.

Currently a Universal Product Code (UPC) in the form of: 8 83 394 00GGG C

Where G represents the 3 digit game number and C represents the check-digit.
Also, there is a unique bar-coded representation of the game number, validation number, pack number and ticket number appearing on the back of the ticket. It contains 22 decimal digits


Question 13.

Regarding C.3.2. Instant Game Specifications, page 27: Would OLC please advise of the required instant ticket stock with respect to thickness, coatings, and recycled content? 
Answer 13. Currently the OLC is getting .010 CIS (10 point virgin, coated one side, card stock). Deep perforations are used between tickets so that tickets dispense easily from acrylic and Play Central units. Standard white primer is always used and there is a clear seal coating covering all the ink jet images on the front of the ticket.
Question 14. 

Regarding C.3.2. Instant Game Specifications, page 27: Would OLC please provide the current number of sample instant tickets required per game? 

Answer 14.

Approximately 2,000 sample instant tickets per game.

Question 15.

Regarding C.3.2. Instant Game Specifications, Item m), page 28: Would OLC please provide the average number of colors used on its instant ticket base graphics and overprint graphics? 

Answer 15.
Front colors are 4 Color Process Integrated + Full UV; Over-print colors are 4 Color Process Integrated + 1 white; all with a white primer.  There is a clear seal coating covering all of the ink-jet images on the front of the ticket.  Back is 1 Color, Black. On occasion, spot colors are used, based on the vendor’s determination of necessity
Question 16. 
Regarding C.3.2.3. UV Coating, page 28: Would the Lottery consider a non-full UV coating over the entire front surface of the ticket (i.e., only the variable data imaging would have UV coating) within the base price? 

Answer16.
a) Offerors may propose non-full UV coating as an alternative product.

b) Proposals shall include pricing/cost of the proposed alternative  

c) Pricing/cost shall include the cost oft full UV coating to clearly demonstrate any resulting reduction in price/cost.

Any proposed alternative Products/Services shall include price/cost

Proposed alternatives must include cost of primary Products/Services to clearly demonstrate any resulting reduction in price/cost.   Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Alternative Products/Services
Question 17.

Regarding C.3.2.4. Instant Ticket Dispenser Inserts, page 28: Would the Lottery accept instant ticket dispenser inserts that are produced outside of Oklahoma? 

Answer 17.
Yes, as long as  print quality does not pose a problem

Question 18.

Regarding C.3.2.6 Quality Specifications, C.3.2.6.2., page 28: Would OLC please provide details of the current equipment in use with respect to software and hardware? 
Answer18.

Desktop as follows, or equivalent. Includes mouse, standard power supply.
OptiPlex 9010 Minitower w/ Standard PSU, Windows 7 Professional, No Media, 64-bit, English

Processors: 3rd Gen Intel Core i5-3470 (6M, 3.2GHz w/HD2500 Graphics)

Memory: 8GB, NON-ECC, 1600MHZ DDR3,2DIMM

Keyboard: Dell KB212-B USB 104 Quiet Key Keyboard, English

Monitor: Dell Professional P2412H 24in HAS Wide Monitor, VGA/DVI

Graphics Card: 1GB NVIDIA GeForce GT 640 w/o adapters

Boot Hard Drive: 1TB 3.5 6Gb/s SATA with 32MB DataBurst Cache™

Removable Media Storage Device: 16X DVD+/-RW and 16X DVD,SATA

Currently using Spyder PRO device by Pantone Colorvision to calibrate the monitor to display the proper colors.  
Question 19.
Would the Lottery please describe its current delivery tolerances and guaranteed prizes for each game?

Answer 19.

Delivery tolerances are + or – 5%.  Guaranteed prizes: Top prizes in a game must be delivered. Typically, each run has four mini-pools established.  Each pack of tickets ($300 value) is to match one of the mini-pools regarding content of low-tier prizes, $1 to $25.

Question 20.

Regarding C.3.24. Instant Ticket Dispensers, page 35: Would OLC please provide details of the currently utilized Instant Ticket Dispensers with respect to number of current models in use, physical size & construction, number of bins, bin dimensions, and current supplier contact information? 
Answer 20.

Schafer Systems Inc. is the current vendor for dispensers. Average size is 16.

Types being utilized, approximate counts and manufacturer URLs are:

Modular: 1468

 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratch.htm
Over the terminal: 54 (varying game configurations) http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchOTSD.htm
In-counter: 161 

In-counter 12: 

http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchICD12.htm
In-counter 16: 

http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchICFL16.htm
Promoter: 240 

Promoter 12: 

http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM12.htm
Promoter 16

 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM16.htm
Promoter 20 

http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/PM20.htm
Edge Glow: 13

 http://www.schafersystemsinc.com/popSection/instantTicket/scratchAfterGlow.htm
Question 21.
Regarding Attachment A - Financial Responsibility, Security and Integrity Form, Item 7, page 45: Would the Lottery please describe what documentation would be considered verification?  If there is a major sub-contractor, is this company required to fill out this attachment? 
Answer 21.
a) The sub-contractor must complete Attachment A

b) Please see the attached document in the RFP Page 1 of 1 OSF /ISD Procurement –Form 076 ISD for the following requirements and Information 
 
 For frequently asked questions concerning Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit, see http://www.tax.ok.gov/faq/faqbussales.html

 For frequently asked questions concerning Workers’ Compensation Insurance, see http://www.ok.gov/oid/Consumers/Workers'_Compensation/index.html
4. Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit
:


YES – Permit #: 


NO -  Exempt pursuant to Oklahoma Laws or Rules

5. Registration with the Oklahoma Secretary of State:


YES – Filing Number:


NO -  Prior to the contract award, the successful bidder will be required to register with the Secretary of State or must attach a signed statement that provides specific details supporting the exemption the supplier is claiming (www.sos.ok.gov or 405-521-3911).

6. Workers’ Compensation Insurance Coverage:

      Bidder is required to provide with the bid a certificate of insurance showing proof of compliance with the Oklahoma Workers’   Compensation Act.


YES – include a certificate of insurance with the bid


NO – attach a signed statement that provides specific details supporting the exemption you are claiming from the Workers’ Compensation Act (Note: Pursuant to Attorney General Opinion #07-8, the exemption from 85 O.S. 2001, § 2.6 applies only to employers who are natural persons, such as sole proprietors, and does not apply to employers who are entities created by law, including but not limited to corporations, partnerships and limited liability companies.)

Please refer to  Section A.15  §A.15.3

In order to receive an award or payments from the State of Oklahoma, vendor must be registered.  The vendor registration process can be completed electronically through the Central Purchasing  website at the following link: https://www.ok.gov/dcs/vendors/index.php   or http://www.ok.gov/DCS/Central_Purchasing/index.html
Question 22.
Regarding Attachments A through E: In the event that there is a major sub-contractor, is this company required to fill out these attachments or just the contracting Vendor? 
Answer 22.
The sub-contractor must complete Attachments A - E.

 VII. Page comment added by Paula Landers 

Question 1.

Section A.52, Ownership Rights, Page 13; and Sections A.53.1-A.53.3, Right of Use, Page 13
The word “software” is used in RFP Sections A.52 and A.53 with both a lower case “s” and upper case “S” but is not defined in the RFP.  Would the OLC please clarify the definition of “software” as the term is used in RFP Sections A.52 and A.53 and clarify that only the portion of the Software developed specifically for the state of Oklahoma will be subject to ownership and use by the state under RFP Sections A.52 and A.53?

Answer 1.
a) Please see the following contained at the beginning of the Section A

A. GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following provisions shall apply where applicable to the solicitation.

b)       b) Definition:

Computer software, or just software, is a collection of computer programs and related data that provides the instructions for telling a computer what to do and how to do it. Software refers to one or more computer programs and data held in the storage of the computer. In other words, software is a set of programs, procedures, algorithms and its documentation concerned with the operation of a data processing system
1. Offerors may disregard the use upper and lower case letters in Section A. 52 § A.52.1 and § A.52.2 when applied to the use of the word “software”. 
2. Reference- Section A.52. & A.53 of the General Terms and Conditions.

A.52. Ownership Rights 

A.52.1.     It is understood and agreed that the Software is being developed by the contractor for the sole and exclusive use of the State of Oklahoma.  Moreover, except with regard to any deliverable based on contractor’s reusable or pre-existing intellectual property (“Utilities”), the State of Oklahoma shall be deemed the sole and exclusive owner of all right, title, and interest therein, including all copyright and proprietary rights relating thereto.

A.52.2.
Except for any utilities, all work performed by the contractor of software and any supporting documentation therefore shall be considered as Works for Hire (as such are defined under the U.S. Copyright Laws) and, as such, shall be opened by and for the benefit of State of Oklahoma. 

A.53. Right of Use 

A.53.1
The State has the right to use or not use the software, not including any  utilities, and to use, reproduce, re-use, alter, modify, edit, or change the software as it sees fit and for any purpose.  However, contractor shall bear no liability for any changes the State makes to such software.

    A.53.2.  In the event that it should be determined that any of such software or supporting documentation does not      qualify as a ”Work Made for Hire”, contractor irrevocably grants to the State an non-exclusive, irrevocable license to use such portion.  With respect to any Utilities, the State shall have the right to perpetual, internal use of the Utilities included in the deliverable.
A.53.3.
Contractor shall assist the State and its Agents, upon request, in preparing U.S. and foreign copyright, trademark, and/or patent applications covering Software.  Contractor shall sign any such applications, upon request, and deliver them to the State.  The State of Oklahoma shall bear all expenses that it causes to be incurred in connection with such copyright, trademark, and/or patent protection.

Question 2. 
Section C.3.23.1, Trademark and Service Mark Search and Registration,
With respect to RFP Section C.3.23.1, instead of delivering a copy of the search report, would the OLC accept a letter from the contractor’s counsel with respect to the game name instead of a search report? With respect to RFP Section C.3.23.2, if the OLC uses a game name against the advice of the contractor, does the OLC agree that LD shall not apply?

Answer 2.
C.3.23.1- Yes, a letter from counsel is acceptable; the report must  be available on request.
C.3.23.2- If the OLC uses a game name against the advice of the contractor LD shall not apply.

VIII. Page comment added by Paula Landers 

Question 1.
Section 4
The reference to "contract or operation" is unclear and does not seem to belong in this section regarding the vendor's licenses.  Will the OLC please remove that reference to "contract or operation", or in the alternative, explain what is meant to be disclosed in response to this reference to "contract or operation?"

Additionally, in certain jurisdictions it is not unusual for licenses to be pending for twelve (12) months or longer before being granted.  Therefore, will the OLC please remove the reference to pending in the last sentence or change the reference from six (6) months to eighteen (18) months?

Answer 1.

a) This language is verbatim from the Oklahoma Lottery Act.  The intent is to identify anything categorized as a “fine” or “penalty” that has been levied against your company and the disposition of the same.

b) Again, this language is verbatim from the Oklahoma Lottery Act. It cannot be changed.
 IX. Page comment added by Paula Landers
Question 1.          

Section A.19, Tax Exemption, Page 8
This RFP section states that the “state agency acquisitions are exempt from sales taxes and federal excise taxes. Offerors shall not include these taxes in price quotes.”

Question:
Are vendors/Offerors also exempt from Sales Taxes and Federal Excise Taxes for products and services provided to the state of Oklahoma, or must Offerors assume the cost of the taxes in the assumptions used to develop the pricing for the offer?

Answer 1.

a) It is the responsibility of each Vendor/Offeror   desiring to submit a response to this RFP to ascertain their exemption status from any Sales Taxes and Federal Excise Taxes.

b) Vendors/Offeror should submit pricing for products and services as prescribed by the RFP.  The State will not accept any proposals that contain any charges, fees, or taxes that may be incurred by the successful vendor.

Reference Solicitation General Terms and Condition -Section - A.19. Tax Exemption

A.19.
State agency acquisitions are exempt from sales taxes and federal excise taxes.  Offerors shall not include these taxes in price quotes.
Prior to award the successful contractor is required to register with the State of Oklahoma Tax Commission and Secretary of State or provide proof of exemption.

Reference- page- Responding Bidder Information
1. Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit:


YES – Permit #: 


NO -  Exempt pursuant to Oklahoma Laws or Rules

2. Registration with the Oklahoma Secretary of State:


YES – Filing Number:


NO -  Prior to the contract award, the successful bidder will be required to register with the Secretary of State or must attach a signed statement that provides specific details supporting the exemption the supplier is claiming (www.sos.ok.gov or 405-521-3911).

Reference –footnote - For frequently asked questions concerning Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit, see 
http://www.tax.ok.gov/faq/faqbussales.html
Question 2.

Section A.24.2, Termination for Cause, Page 8
This RFP section states that “the State may terminate the contract immediately, without a 30-day written notice to the contractor, when violations are found, when conditions preclude the 30-day notice, or when the State determines that, an administrative error occurred prior to contract performance.”

Question:
Would the OLC please considering adding the word “material” before the word “violations?”

Answer 2.
The State remains firm on this clause.

Question 3.

 Section A.24.3, Termination for Cause, Page 8 and A.25.3, Termination for Convenience, page 6
In Section A.24.3 the RFP states: “If the contract is terminated, the State shall be liable only for payment for products and/or services delivered and accepted.”

In Section A.25.3: the RFP states: “If the contract is terminated, the State shall be liable only for payment for products and/or services delivered and accepted”

Question:
Will the OLC please consider revising these two stated requirements to state the following: “If the contract is terminated for cause, the State shall be liable only for payment for products and/or services delivered and accepted, and shall be liable only for the prorated cost for any “in progress” products and/or services that were requested by the OLC prior to issuing the termination for cause notification.”

Answer 3.
The State remains firm on this clause

Reference - Solicitation General Terms and Condition -Section A.18.  Invoicing and Payment § A.18.1

A.18.1. Contractor shall be paid upon submission of an accurate and proper invoice(s), as defined by Title 62 O.S. §34.73, to the agency, at the prices stipulated on the contract.  Failure to provide accurate invoices may result in delay of processing invoices for payment.  Pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.44B, invoices shall be paid in arrears after products have been delivered or services provided.  Invoices shall contain the purchase order number, a description of the services provided, and the dates of those services.

Question 4.
Section A.49, Agency Policies, Page 12
This RFP section states that “the contractor’s employees and/or sub-contractors must adhere to the agency policies pertaining to acceptable use of Internet and electronic mail, facility and data security, press releases, and public relations. It is up to the contractor to review and relay agency policies covering the above to the consulting staff.”

Question:
Will the OLC please verify that it will provide copies of all relevant policies to the successful contractor?

Answer 4.

Any agency policies will be made available to the successful contractor, as required.

Question 5.
Section A.54.2.a, Source Code Escrow, Page 13
This RFP section states that “State agency shall include all State agencies, whether subject to the Central Purchasing Act or not, except the Oklahoma Lottery Commission; and”

Question:
Sub-section a) is confusing as written.  Could the OLC please clarify the meaning of the clause “except the Oklahoma Lottery Commission?”

Answer 5.

This means that the Oklahoma Lottery Commission is excluded from escrow requirements unless the Commission deems it necessary or in the event of any required customization.
Reference - Solicitation General Terms and Condition –Section A.54   § A.54.2 as used in this section: part b-

"State agency" shall include all State agencies,  whether subject to the Central Purchasing Act or not, except the Oklahoma Lottery Commission; and
"Source code" means the programming instruction for a computer program in its original form, created by a programmer with a text editor or a visual programming tool and saved in a file.
Question 6.
Section C.2.28, Electronic Displays, Page 25 and Section C.2.29, Wireless Jackpot Sign Maintenance, Page 25
RFP Section C.2.28 states that the “Offeror will provide, and the Proposal must describe the electronic displays for terminals which display jackpot or other promotional messages that are included in the Proposal.”

RFP Section C.2.29 states that the “Offeror will be responsible for timely delivery and installation of retail jackpot signage as provided by OLC.”

Questions
1. Does the OLC envision having both “electronic displays for terminals which display jackpot or other promotional messages” And “Wireless Jackpot Signs”?
2. Is it the OLC’s intention that there would be two distinctly separate Signs/Displays that would both be used to display Jackpot information?
Answer 6. 

Yes, but not in all retail locations. We currently have CDU’s that display the JPs and provide notification to winners that they won.  And, we have the wireless jackpot signs.  

Reference RPF requirements/specifications Section C 2.28 §C.2.28.1 and C.2.28.2

C.2.28 ELECTRONIC DISPLAYS 
C.2.28.1 Offeror will provide, and the Proposal must describe the electronic displays for terminals which   display jackpot or other promotional messages that are included in the Proposal. 

C.2.28.2.The Proposal must describe how Offeror will ensure for delivery and installation of these electronic displays at each approved online retailer location, as needed.

Offerors may submit an alternative proposal regarding display units and/or jackpot signs that may address the needs of the Lottery. 

c) Any proposed alternative Products/Services shall include price/cost
d) Proposed alternatives must include cost of primary Products/Services to clearly demonstrate any resulting reduction in price/cost and benefit to OLC.   
Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Alternative Products/Services
Example: 

Cost of Primary Product/Service _______ per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Cost of proposed Alternative Product/Service __________per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Optional Services for Alternative Products/Services
Question 7.
Section C.2.30.1 a) Security Plan, Page 25
This RFP section states that “the OLC will require Offeror to have a Statement of Auditing Standards SSAE16 Third Party Controls Review performed by an independent CPA firm at Offeror’s expense. Offeror’s Proposal should describe how any audit recommendations regarding any of the online Vendor's activities shall be corrected by Offeror and indicate appropriate deadlines for making the changes.”

Question
How frequently does the Lottery require the SSAE16 review to be performed?

Answer 7.

Currently, it is required annually covering at least a 6-month period out of every year.  It could be completed every other year, and would need to cover a 12 month period in that case.

Question 8.
Section C.2.32, Liquidated Damages (LD), Page 26 Security Plan, Page 25
Question
RFP Section C.30.6 contains an exclusion for LD related to Instant Tickets when delays arise out of Force Majeure Events.

Would the OLC please add a similar provision to RFP Section C.2.32, which is the section related to LD for Online Gaming, which does not contain a similar exception?

Answer 8.

Addresses  Section C.3.30.6 & Section C.2.32

The State adds the following as provided for under Section of the RFP B “Special Provisions”.

Force Majeure

Definition:  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other or deemed in default under this contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence that is beyond the control of the party affected and could not have been avoided by exercising reasonable diligence.  Force Majeure shall include acts of God, war, riots, strikes, fire, floods, or other similar occurrences.

Force Majeure shall not include, or be related to, the following occurrences:

· Late delivery or equipment, supplies or materials or an oversold condition of the market.

· Inability of either the Contractor or approved subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required insurance, bond, license, or permit.

Notification:  If either party is delayed by Force Majeure, said party shall provide written notification within forty-eight (48) hours.  The notification shall provide evidence of the force Majeure to the satisfaction of the other party.  Such delay shall cease as soon as practicable and written notification of it shall be provided.  The time of completion for the suppliers’ performance may be extended by contract modification for a period of time as determined by the State Purchasing director equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevented the supplier from performing in accordance with this contract.

Rights Reserved:  The state reserves the right to cancel the contract and/or purchase materials, equipment, or services from the best available source during the time of Force Majeure, and Contractor shall have no recourse against the state.
Question 9.

 Section C.3.2.4 Instant Ticket Dispenser Inserts, Page 28
This RFP section states that “Offeror will provide OLC with instant ticket dispenser inserts that are produced locally in relationship to OLC Headquarters, and paid for by Vendor. The number of inserts will be enough to provide an insert for 90% of the packs in each print run unless otherwise agreed in writing.”

Question:
How many instant ticket dispenser inserts are required by the OLC and what is the current cost?

Answer 9.

In the last 12 months, 322,920 inserts have been printed at a cost of $14,168.86.
Question 10.
Section C.3.22.3 Start-Up/Transition Plan/Timeline, Page 34
This RFP section states that “as part of the Proposal, Offeror shall include a start-up plan and timeline for the first eighteen (18) months following the award of the contract.  Each Offeror should include recommendations for the number of games and quantity of tickets for each game for this time period.”

Questions:
One of the Lottery's greatest challenges is managing overall payout to meet the annual turnover requirement percentage. Given that available unclaimed prizes are limited to fund instant game prize structures, would the Lottery please share how future game plans will be adjusted?  For example, is reducing the number of $5 games or reducing distribution contemplated in order to lower the aggregate payout? 

Answer 10.
Yes.  The Lottery is required to meet the mandated 35% profit requirement.  Ongoing analysis of sales data, including the product / price point mix of sales related to profitability, may mean that the Lottery is required to take any or all of the following actions (not a comprehensive list):

· Reduce the number games with higher prize payouts in order to bring profits back in line;

· Reduce the payouts in higher price point games which are to be released in the future;

· Pull higher price point games off the street;

· Modify distribution of games, particularly relating to the higher price point games;

Question 11.

Section C.3.24.1 and C.3.24.2 Instant Ticket Dispensers, Page 35
This RFP section states that “the Oklahoma Lottery has provided existing retailers with instant ticket dispensers as needed. A Vendor’s Proposal must include a plan to provide sufficient and appropriately sized dispensers that securely store, display and dispense the required number of full packs of instant tickets using the best marketing and sales approaches, for all new retail locations to be added and to replace existing dispensers as they become excessively worn, broken or of the wrong size for a particular retailer.”

This RFP section states that “Offeror’s proposal must describe their plan for distribution and replacement of the dispensers and describe the type of dispensers proposed. Approximately 3,500 multi-unit instant ticket dispensers or their equivalents will be required in the first 48 months of the contract. Vendor’s plan should provide for future growth in the OLC retailer base.”

1   Questions 

2   1.   Does the Lottery or the Vendor/Offeror pay the cost of the ticket dispensers?

3   2.  What is the average number of facings per retailer required by the Lottery?

Answer 11. 

1. The Vendor / Offeror pay the cost of the ticket dispensers. Dispensers remain with the Lottery when the contract expires.

2. Average is approximately 16.  Range is from 4 to 32.

Question 12.

Section E.3.3 Submission of Offer, Page 38
This RFP section states that “the Offeror should include three (3) “machine readable” versions, preferably in Microsoft WORD format, on CD or DVD, of the Offeror’s proposal.”

Answer 12.
Yes, “machine readable” versions in a PDF format” is acceptable.

Question 13.

Section E.4.2 Proprietary and/or Confidential Information, Page 38
This RFP section states that “if an Offeror believes particular information requested by the RFP for evaluation purposes is proprietary, the Offeror shall submit that information separate and apart from its response and mark it Proprietary and Confidential.”

Questions:
1 Does this confidentiality requirement pertain to information that is provided in the required Attachments and/or Forms as well?

2 Since it is likely that proprietary and confidential information will be embedded with non-proprietary and non-confidential material, submitting such information separately will lead to disjointed and possibly unintelligible responses to the RFP requirements. Therefore, instead of providing proprietary and confidential “information separate,” will the Commission instead allow proprietary and confidential information to be clearly identified and begin new right pages within the response whenever this type of information appears?

3 Will the OLC accept a redacted version of the response along with the separate proprietary and/or confidential information?

Answer 13.

a) If an offeror submits the Attachments and /or Forms marked confidential these items will be regarded as confidential.  

b) It is the responsibility of the offeror to determine if the information they are submitting is confidential and/or proprietary. 

c) Proprietary and/or confidential information-    Reference - Solicitation General Terms and Condition –Section E.4 § E.4.1 & E.4.2  If an offeror believes particular information requested by the RFP for evaluation purposes is proprietary, the offeror shall submit that information separate and apart from its response and mark it Proprietary and Confidential.
A redacted version of the response will not be accepted; response will be deemed unresponsive.
Reference - Solicitation General Terms and Condition –Section E.4 § E.4.1 & E.4.2

E.4. Proprietary and/or Confidential

E.4.1. Offerors claiming any portion of their offer as proprietary or confidential must specifically identify what documents or portions of documents they consider confidential and identify applicable law supporting their claim of confidentiality.  The CIO shall make the final decision as to whether the documentation or information is confidential pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.10.

E.4.2. if an offeror believes particular information requested by the RFP for evaluation purposes is proprietary, the offeror shall submit that information separate and apart from its response and mark it Proprietary and Confidential. If ISD in its sole discretion agrees the information is proprietary, ISD will maintain the information as Confidential.  If ISD does not acknowledge the information as proprietary, ISD will return or destroy the information with proper notice to the offeror and the evaluation will be completed without consideration of the information marked Proprietary. PROPOSALS MARKED, IN TOTAL, AS PROPRIETARY and/or CONFIDENTAIL SHALL NOT BE CONSIDERED. 

Question 14.
Section E.5.1, Oklahoma Open Records Act, Page 38
This RFP section states that “Proposals will not be considered confidential after a contract is awarded.”

Question:
Would the OLC please confirm that sections of a proposal properly marked confidential or proprietary will be maintained as confidential after a contract is awarded?

Answer 14.
Reference – Proprietary and/or Confidential Information –Section E.4 § E.4.2

E.4.1. Offerors claiming any portion of their offer as proprietary or confidential must specifically identify what documents or portions of documents they consider confidential and identify applicable law supporting their claim of confidentiality.  The Purchasing Director Aka  the State CIO shall make the final decision as to whether the documentation or information is confidential pursuant to 74 O.S. §85.10.

Reference -Section A General Term and Conditions § A.122.

A.1.22. 
“State CIO” is the State Chief Information Officer, as used herein the CIO has the same authority as the State Purchasing Director for all IT and Telecommunications purchasing. For IT and Telecommunication purchasing, references in Oklahoma Central Purchasing Act and Oklahoma Administrative Code 580 to the “State Purchasing Director” shall be replaced with the “State Chief Information Officer”. For this RFP, the same effect shall apply;

Question 15.
Section E.8 P-Cards, Page 39;  Section E.9 Deliverables, Page 39; and Section F. Checklist, page 40:
This RFP section requires companies to indicate if they will accept P-Cards, but this RFP Section is not listed in the E.9 (Deliverables) or Section F (Checklist).

Question:

Where should an offeror respond to RFP Section E.8 within the Deliverables?

Answer 15.
P-Cards 

The State of Oklahoma has issued P-Cards to most State agencies.  The current P-Card contract holder utilizes VISA

If awarded a statewide contract will your company accept the State of Oklahoma approved purchase card: 

 Yes _____   No _____ (check one).   You would check either yes or no, however this is not applicable in to this RFP as this is not will be awarded as a Statewide Contract.
Question 16.

Section E.9.5.3 Bonds, Page 40  

This RFP section states that “the successful contractor shall submit a fidelity bond made payable to OLC in the amount of $2,000,000 (two million dollars) within 30 days after award of the Contract covering any loss to the state due to any fraudulent or dishonest act on the part of the contractor.  The fidelity bond shall be in the form of an original bond (no copy or facsimile).  The contract number and dates of performance must be specified in the fidelity bond.”

Some Offerors may maintain fidelity coverage through an insurance policy which covers any and all employees of the Offeror, and can only provide proof of insurance to State through a certificate of insurance evidencing $2,000,000 in coverage, naming State as loss payee, referencing contract number and policy term of coverage within 30 days after award of the Contract.    

Question:
Will Lottery accept insurance policy and evidence of coverage for the fidelity bond requirement in RFP Section 3.9.5.3?

Answer 16.

The Lottery will accept a Certificate of Insurance showing evidence of a Crime Policy with limits as requested and indicating the Oklahoma Lottery Commission (OLC) is the certificate holder, and is listed under the policy as the “Loss Payee”.

In addition to the Certificate of Insurance, provide a copy of the endorsement to the policy stating the policy covers third party liability coverage related to the contract with the OLC and naming the Oklahoma Lottery Commission as the Loss Payee.

Question 17.

Section E.9.7 Financial Status, Page 40
This RFP section states that it requires Offerors to provide “the last three years audited financial statements or the last three years of tax returns.”

Question:
Will the Commission accept financial documents on CD in a pdf format?

Answer 17.
Yes, “financial documents on CD in a pdf format’ will be acceptable”

Question 18.

Section E.9.8 Response To Requirements, Page 40
Question:
Will the Commission please confirm that responses to RFP Section C.2 and/or RFP Section C.3 in their entirety are to be presented directly in front of RFP Section E.9.8.1, which is Attachment A: Financial Responsibility, Security and Integrity Form.

Answer 18.

Confirmed- “RFP Section C.2 and/or RFP Section C.3 in their entirety are to be presented directly in front of RFP Section E.9.8.1”,
X.  Page Comment submitted-by Sarah Lambert

Question 1.

Section C.2.1.1. states that “Offeror must describe and discuss in detail their proposed integrated solution for conversion from the existing Computer Gaming System (CGS), if required, and for the operation of the CGS to be included in the offeror’s proposal and related services, including online lottery games.” Does the State intend that an Offeror who proposes to supply used, rather than new, equipment / products will comply with the requirements of this procurement?”

Answer 1

Yes, Offerors may submit alternative pricing/cost for used equipment. 

a) Any proposed alternative Products/Services shall include price/cost

b) Proposed alternatives must include cost of primary Products/Services to clearly demonstrate any resulting reduction in price/cost and benefit to OLC.   

Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Alternative Products/Services
Example: 

Cost of Primary Product/Service _______ per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Cost of proposed Alternative Product/Service __________per month / or per month per unit / or one-time cost for duration of contract or _X.XXXX_% of sales.  

Please reference Section G.2.4 of the RFP for Optional Services for Alternative Products/Services
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